Approved: g fpoatil [ /ZMM M/(/Z/ﬁ/ \,bw/,

DANIEL C. RICHENTHAL/RAHUL’MUKHI/JANTS M, ECHENBERG
Assistant United States Attorneys

Before: THE HONORABLE HENRY B. PITMAN
United States Magistrate Judge

Southern District of New Yor%" %
- x

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA : SEALED COMPLAINT
- v. - : Violations of
: 18 U.5.C. 8§ 371, 666,

JOHN W. ASHE, : 1956, and 2; and
FRANCIS LORENZO, : 26 U.S.C. § 7206(1)
NG LAP SENG, -

a/k/a “David Ng,” : COUNTIES OF OFFENSE:
JEFF C. YIN, : :

a/k/a “Yin Chuan,” . NEW YORK

SHIWEI YAN, : WESTCHESTER
a/k/a “Sheri Yan,” and :

HEIDI HONG PIAO,
a/k/a “Heidi Park,”

Defendants.

" SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK, ss.:

JASON P. ALBERTS, being duly sworn, deposes and says that he
is a Special Agent with the Federal Bureau of Investigation (“FBI”)
and charges as follows:

'

COUNT ONE
(Conspiracy to Bribe a United Nations Official)

1. From at least in or about 2011, up to and including in or
about December 2014, in the Southern District of New York and
elsewhere, FRANCIS LORENZO, NG LAP SENG, a/k/a “David Ng,” JEFF C.
YIN, a/k/a “Yin Chuan,” SHIWEI YAN, a/k/a “Sheri Yan,” and HEIDI HONG
PIAO, a/k/a “Heidi Park,” the defendants, and others known and
unknown, willfully and knowingly did combine, conspire, confederate,
and agree together and with each other to violate Title 18, United
States Code, Section 666.



2. It was a part and an object of the conspiracy that FRANCIS
LORENZO, NG LAP SENG, a/k/a “David Ng” (“NG”), JEFF C. YIN, a/k/a
“Yin Chuan,” SHIWEI YAN, a/k/a “Sheri Yan,” and HEIDI HONG PIAO, a/k/a
“Heidi Park,” the defendants, and others known and - unknown, would
and did corruptly give, offer, and agree to give a thing of value
to a person, with the intent to influence and reward an agent of an
‘'organization, in connection with a business, transaction, and series
of transactions of such organization, involving a thing of value of
$5,000 and more, while such organization was in receipt of, in a one
year period, benefits in excess of $10,000 under a Federal program
involving a grant, contract, subsidy, loan, guarantee, insurance,
and other form of federal assistance, in violation of Title 18, United
States Code, Section 666(a) (2), to wit, LORENZO, NG, YIN, YAN, and
PIAO agreed to pay and to facilitate the payment of bribes to an
individualservingasE&esidentoftheUhitedNationsGeneralAssembly
and the Permanent Representative to the United Nations (“UN”) for
Antigua and Barbuda (“Antigua”), in exchange for official actions
on behalf of businessmen.

Overt Acts

3. In furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect the illegal
objectthereof,thefollowingovertacts,amongothers,werecommitted
and caused to be committed in the Southern District of New York and
elsewhere:

a. On or about February 24, 2012, defendants FRANCIS
LORENZO, NG LAP SENG, a/k/a “David Ng,” and JEFF C. YIN, a/k/a “Yin
Chuan,” caused the Permanent Representative to the UN for Antigua,
in exchange for payments, to introduce a document at the UN in support
of a real estate project being developed by NG.

b. QnoraboutJuneB,2014,NG,LORENZO,andYINazranged
for a $200,000 wire payment to a private bank account belonging to
the President of the UN General Assembly in exchange for the President
making a foreign visit to NG in his official capacity in order to
discuss progress on the real estate project being developed by NG.

C. -On or about July 25, 2012, YAN and PIAO arranged for
a $300,000 wire from a co-conspirator not named as a defendant herein
("CC-1") to a private bank account belonging to the Permanent
Representative to the UN for Antigua in exchange for advocating for
CC-1's business interests with Antiguan government officials.

d. On or about November 4, 2013, YAN and PIAO arranged
for a $200,000 wire to a bank account belonging to the President of
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the UN General Assembly from another co-conspirator not named as a
defendant herein in exchange for the President attending a private
conference in his official capacity.

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.)

COUNT TWO
(Payment of Bribes)

4. From at least in or about 2011, up to and including in or
about December 2014, in the Southern District of New York and
elsewhere, FRANCIS LORENZO, NG LAP SENG, a/k/a “David Ng,”, JEFF C.
YIN, a/k/a “Yin Chuan,” SHIWEI YAN, a/k/a “Sheri Yan,” and HEIDI HONG
PIAC, a/k/a “Heidi Park,” the defendants, corruptly gave, offered,
and agreed to give a thing of value to a person, with the intent to
influence and reward an agent of an organization, in connection with
a business, transaction, and series of transactions of such
organization, involving a thing of value of $5,000 and more, while
such organization was in receipt of, in any one year period, benefits
in excess of $10,000 under a Federal program involving a grant,
contract, subsidy, loan, guarantee, insurance, and other form of
federal assistance, to wit, LORENZO, NG, YIN, YAN, and PIAO,
facilitated and arranged for the payment of bribes to an individual
serving as the President of the United Nations General Assembly and
the Permanent Representative to the Urited Nations for Antigua in
exchange for official actions on behalf of businessmen.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 666 (a) (2) and 2.)

COUNT THREE

(Conspiracy to Commit Transportation Money Laundering)

5. From at least in or about 2011, up to and including in or
about December 2014, in the Southern District of New York and
elsewhere, SHIWEI YAN, a/k/a “Sheri Yan,” and HEIDI HONG PIAO, a/k/a
“Heidi Park,” the defendants, and others known and unknown, willfully
and knowingly did combine, conspire, confederate, and agree together
and with each other to violate Title 18, United States Code, Section
1956 (a) (2) (An) .

6. It was a part and an object of the conspiracy that SHIWET
YAN, a/k/a “Sheri Yan,” and HEIDI HONG PIAO, a/k/a “Heidi Park,” the
defendants, and others known and unknown, would and did knowingly
transport, transmit, and transfer, and attempt to transport,
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transmit, and transfer, a monetary instrument and funds from a place
in the United States to and through a place outside of the United
States and to a place in the United States from and through a place
outside of the United States, with the intent to promote the carrying
on of specified unlawful activity, to wit, the bribery of a public
official, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section
1956 (a) (2) (A), to wit, YAN and PIAO agreed to transmit payments to
the then-Prime Minister of Antigua through Antigua’s Ambassador to
the United Nations in return for official actions.

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956 (h).)

COUNTS FOUR AND FIVE

(Subscribing to False and Fraudulent U.S. Individual Income Tax
Returns) :

7. On or about the dates identified below, in the Southern
District and elsewhere, JOHN W. ASHE, the defendant, willfully and
knowingly, did make and subscribe to U.S. Individual Income Tax
Returns, Forms 1040, for the tax years set forth below, which returns
contained and were verified by the written declaration of ASHE that
they were made under penalties of perjury, and which returns ASHE
did not believe to be true and correct as to every material matter,
to wit, ASHE fraudulently omitted a total of more than $1.2 million
of income from his tax returns, including bribes received and the
purported salary ASHE paid himself as President of the United Nations
General Assembly, thereby substantially understatinghis total income
as set forth below for the years set forth below:

“Count - Approxlmate Flllng . Tax Year |- Approxlmate )
SRS  Date- L vﬂf:g[;‘fﬁﬁ,ﬂi Income Omitted: .
Four April 15, 2014 2013 $462,350.00
Five April 15, 2015 2014 $796,329.28

(Title 26, United States Code, Section 7206 (1), and Title 18, Unlted
States Code, Section 2.)

The bases for deponent’s knowledge and for the foregoing charges
are, in part, as follows:

8. I have been a Special Agent with the FBI for approximately
six years, and I have been personally involved in the 1nvest1gatlon
of this matter, which has been handled jointly by Special Agents of
the FBI and the Internal Revenue Service—Criminal Investigation.
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9. This affidavit is based in part upon my own observations,
my conversations with other law enforcement agents and others, my
review of email correspondence,lnw'analy51s of bank of records, my
examination of documents and reports by others, my interviews of
witnesses, and my training and experience. Because this affidavit
is being submitted for the limited purpose of establishing probable
cause, it does not include all the facts that I have learned during
the course of the investigation. Where the contents of documents and
the actions, statements and conversations of others are reported
herein, they are reported in substance and in part, except where
specifically indicated otherwise.

OVERVIEW

10. As set forth in greater detail below, this case involves
businesspeople paying bribes to defendant JOHN W. ASHE, at the time
when he served as the United Nations Ambassador for Antigua and Barbuda
and as the 68th President of the United Nations General Assembly.
These bribes were facilitated by, among others, defendants FRANCIS
LORENZO, NG LAP SENG, a/k/a “*David Ng,” JEFF C. YIN, a/k/a “Yin Chuan, ”
SHIWEIYAN,a/k/a“SheriYan,”andHEIDIHONGPIAO,a/k/a“HeidiPérk,”
who arranged for the transmission and laundering of over $1 million
of bribery money from sources in China. In exchange for the bribes,
ASHE agreed to and did perform official actions for businessmen who
were seeking benefits from the UN and the government of Antigua and
Barbuda. Among other things, ASHE accepted over $500,000 of bribes
facilitated by LORENZO and YIN from NG, who was seeking to build a
multi-billiandollar,UN—sponsoredconferencecenter:thacau,China
(the “UN Macau Conference Center”). In exchange for these payments
from NG, among other actions, ASHE submitted a UN document to the
UN Secretary General, which claimed that there was a purported need
to build the UN Macau Conference Center. In-addition, ASHE received
over $800,000 in bribes from various Chinese businessmen arranged
through YAN and PIAO and, in return for these bribes, ASHE supported
these businessmen’s interests within the United Nations and with
senior Antiguan govermment officials, including the country’s
then-Prime Minister (the “Prime Minister”), with whom ASHE shared
a portion of the bribe payments.

L The emails cited herein were obtained pursuant to search warrants

of the personal Yahoo, Gmail, and AOL email accounts for defendants
JOHN W. ASHE, FRANCIS LORENZO, JEFF C. YIN, a/k/a “Yin Chuan,” SHIWEI
YAN, a/k/a “Sheri Yan,” and HEIDI HONG PIAO, a/k/a “Heidi Park.”



11. To funnel and help conceal the bribesg to defendant JOHN
W. ASHE, defendants NG LAP SENG, a/k/a “David Ng,” JEFF C. YIN, a/k/a
“Yin Chuan,” SHIWEI YAN, a/k/a “Sheri Yan,” and HEIDI HONG PIAO, a/k/a
"Heidi Park,” along with others, used non-governmental organizations
("NGOs”) in the United States, which were purportedly established
to promote the UN’'s mission and/or development goals.

12. During the course of the scheme, defendant JOHN W. ASHE
solicited and received bribes in various forms, including payments
to third-parties to cover ASHE's personal expenses, such as a family
vacation and construction of a basketball court at his house in Dobbs
Ferry, New York. ASHE also solicited a portion of his bribes to be
paid to two business bank accounts that ASHE opened at two major
American banks, in the name “John Ashe dba John Ashe PGA 68,” and
“Office of the President of the General Assembly PGA 68 Operating
Account, ” for the purported purpose of raising money for his UN General
Assembly Presidency (“PGA Account-1” and “PGA Account-2,” together,
the “PGA Accounts”). ASHE was the sole signatory on both of the PGA
Accounts. From in or about 2012, up to and including at least in or
about 2014, ASHE received over $3 million in the PGA Accounts from
both foreign governments and individuals. During the same time
period, ASHE withdrew more than $1,000,000 from the PGA Accounts and
transferred the money to his and his wife’s personal bank accounts.
ASHE also used money transferred from the PGA Accounts to pay for
his personal expenses, such as paying the mortgage on his house in
Dobbs Ferry, paying his BMW lease payments, and buying luxury items
such as Rolex watches. The majority of the funds that ASHE withdrew
from the PGA Accounts were in the form of checks made out to ASHE
that ASHE signed himself, and had “salary” listed in the check memo
line. During the same periodof time, ASHE failed to report sufficient
income to the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) to account for the
self-described salary and other funds he withdrew from the PGA
Accounts. In total, ASHE underreported his income to the IRS by more
than $1.2 million dollars in tax years 2013 and 2014 alone.

RELEVANT INDIVIDUALS AND ENTITIES

JOHN W. ASHE

13. From in or about 1989, up to and including in or about
December 2014, JOHN W. ASHE, the defendant, served in various
positions at the Permanent Mission of Antigua to the UN, which is
located in New York, New York.? Beginning in or about May 2004, ASHE

2 ASHE no longer serves as a diplomat representing Antigua or any
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served as the Permanent Representative of Antigua to the UN. During
all times relevant to this Complaint, ASHE has been a lawful permanent
resident (“LPR”) of the United States and has maintained a house in
Dobbs Ferry, New York, which is located in Westchester County. Based
on my review of ASHE's immigration file, I have also learned that
when ASHE applied to become an LPR, in or about October 2000, ASHE
waived in writing his assertion of any immunity that would otherwise
accrue to him based on his occupational status as a diplomat.

14. T know from witness interviews and my review of publicly
available sources that on or about June 13, 2013, JOHN W. ASHE, the
defendant,waselectedasthe68thPresidentbfthetﬂJGeneralAssembly
(“UNGA”) for a one-year term beginning in or about September 2013
and ending in or about September 2014. The UNGA is comprised of all
193 UN Member States, which elect a rotating President from one of
the Member States on an annual basis. Among other things, the UNGA
President presides over the current UNGA session and represents the
UNGA at various international economic and cultural forums.

15. I know from publicly available records that during each
of the years relevant to this Complaint, the United States Government
provided the UN with federal funds in excess of $10,000.

FRANCIS LORENZO, NG LAP SENG, a/k/a “David Ng,” and JEFF C. YIN, a/k/a
“Yin Chuan”

16. From in or about 2004, up to and including the present,
defendant FRANCIS LORENZO has been the Deputy Permanent
Representative to the United Nations for the Dominican Republic.
Based on my review of immigration records, I learned that LORENZO

other country. I understand from my discussions with the United
States Department of State that, at most, ASHE enjoys residual
official act immunity based on his former status as a diplomat from
Antigua from in or about February 2000 to in or about December 2014
and as President of the United Nations General Assembly from in or
about September 2013 to in or about October 2014. ASHE’s service in
these positions provides immunity only for conduct within the scope
of his official positions, which must be affirmatively asserted in
any judicial proceeding, to the extent he is permitted to do so
notwithstanding an immunity waiver he executed in connection with
becoming a U.S. legal permanent resident in or about October 2000.
Official act immunity does not provide protection from arrest and
does not cover conduct outside the scope of one’s official position,
such as the filing of false personal U.S. tax returns.
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